

Dr.Web Enterprise Security Suite 12.0 Features of the Application Control module





Dr.Web Enterprise Security Suite 12.0

Features of the Application Control module

Important! Before initiating the upgrade procedure, it is recommended that you study the relevant sections of the product documentation for Dr.Web Enterprise Security Suite 12.

Contents

1.	The module's purpose and configuration procedure	. 3
1.1.	Configuring the contents of the activity statistics on protected stations	. 3
1.2.	Creating an Application Control module Profile	. 5
1.3.	Defining the list of trusted applications	. 6
1.4.	Setting an operation mode for the Application Control module Profile	. 8
1.5.	Configuring the Application Control module Profile	. 14
1.5.1.	Creating a rule based on activity log data	. 14
1.5.2.	Creating a rule based on Application catalog data	. 16
1.6.	Assigning a Profile to protected objects	. 16
2.	Viewing activity statistics on protected stations	. 18



1. The module's purpose and configuration procedure

To block malicious files that are known only to be found in mailings, you can use the functionality of the **Application Control** module within **Dr.Web Enterprise Security Suite's Control Center**.

This module monitors the activity of all the processes running on the protected stations in an anti-virus network. **Application Control** lets the system administrator (or the security specialist) allow or deny the launch of applications on stations running Dr.Web Agent for Windows.

The presence of the **Application Control** module depends on the type of operating system being protected.

	*					5° 5° 64	Sev.
🛄 Everyone	Everyone. Custom settings	are specified.					
General	Profile name ***	Operation mode VA	Functional analysis criteria	Deny rules ***	Allow rules VA	Trusted applications ~ ^	T
Configuration	For main group	Active	10 conditions	1 n/e	1 rule	0 groups	
Permission Pask Scheduler Update reat-follow Update reat-follow Update reat-follow Enstating components Convection settings Windows SplDer Mail and SplDer Gata Sn. Wen Agent Office Control SplDer Councel for vehiclations SplDer Councel for vehiclations SplDer Councel for vehiclations SplDer Councel for vehiclations Dr. Web Kinewall Dr. Web Kinewall Perventions protection NetWork port monitor Application Control						Proge: 1 Straving 1	1-141 10

Important! The **Application Control** module can only be configured via the Control Center—it's impossible to configure the module via the stations running Dr.Web Agent.

To configure **Application Control**, do the following:

1. Create a profile.

The launch of all applications is allowed until you create profiles and assign them to anti-virus network stations.

- 2. Designate the stations, users, and groups to which the settings of the newly created profile will be distributed.
- 3. Configure the profile.

Important! It is recommended that you configure profiles in the test mode. The test mode imitates what the Application Control module does, fully logging the activity occurring on all protected stations in the statistics log, but applications are not actually blocked.

1.1. Configuring the contents of the activity statistics on protected stations

Allow the gathering and sending of information from stations for the **Application Control events** section.

* Selected objects *						<u>**</u> ** ** **	Week 🗸	25-10-2019 00:0	0:00 * 3	1-10-2019 23:59:59	efresh
🛄 Everyone	Identifier VA	Station MA	Event type MA	Applied action MA	Profile name MA	Rule name VA	Operation mode VA	Process MA	Script MA	Event occurrence MA	T 0
General Statistics	2ca841e0-ecaa-11e8-7906- f0f7da268169	WINLO_RUS	Process launch	Unknown			Active	Far.exe		25-10-2019 14:48:47	
Threats Errors	2ca841e0-ecaa-11e8-7906- f0f7de268160	WINEQ_RUS	Process launch	Blocked by deny rules	Haney	c18efa50-f97a-11e9-52ce- ef74b6e0104f	Active	Fei.exe		20-10-2019 15:03:00	
• Summary data • Scan statistics	21a941e0-e1aa-11e0-7900- 10f7da268169	WINEO_RUS	Process launch	Blocked by deny rules	Huney	c18efa50-f97e-11e9-52ce- e(74b6e5194f	Active	Fel.exe		28-10-2019 15:03:04	
 Start/Stop Threat statistics 	21a941e0-e1aa-11e0-7900- M0f7d#268169	WINEQ. RUS	Process lounch	Blocked by deny rules	Honey	<18efa50-197a-11e9-52ce- e47456c9194f	Active	Far.com		28 10 2019 15:03:12	
• Status • Taska	2co84ie0 ecco 11c8 7006 f0f7cb268169	WIN10_RUS	Process Jounch	Blocked by deny rules	For main group	dđar	Active	For Joint		28 10-2019 15:06:22	
Blocked devices Products	2ce841e0 ecce 11e8 7006 f0f7dx268169	WIN10_RUS	MSI peckage launch	Unknown			Active			28-10-2019 15:07:56	
Preventive protection events	2ca941e0-ecsa-11e8-7906- f077dx268169	WINEQ_RUS	Module load	Unknown			Active	Far.axe		29-10-2019 15:08:19	
Agent installations	2cs841e0-ecss-11e8-7906-	WINIO RUS	Notice lost	Linknown			Active	Alim di		28-10-2019 15-08-21	



- 1. In the tree in the **Anti-virus network** section, select the station or group of stations the **Application Control** module is installed on from which you want to receive information about the applications being launched.
- 2. In the control menu, select **Windows** \rightarrow **Dr.Web Agent**.
- In the General tab, tick the box next to Track Application Control events to monitor the station process activity detected by the Application Control module and send the events to the Server.
 Important! If the box is cleared, process activity is ignored.

Anti-virus Network > Everyone > Wind	lows > Dr.Web Agent 😭						
▼ Selected objects	*					50	i di Bit i Kono
🗎 Everyone	Everyone. Custom settings are specified.						
a General	General Mohility Log Interface Events						
 Statistics Configuration 	Task Scheduler startup delay (min.)	1		*	*		
Permissions Task Scheduler	Period of statistics sending (min.)	60		*	*		
Update restrictions Installing components	Interval of virus databases relevance	1 da	na 🗤	*	*		
* Connection settings	Language	System language 🗸 🗸		•	•		
Windows Scanner SpiDer Mail and SpiDer Gate	Enable Microsoft Network Access Protection			•	•		
Dr. Web Agent	Allow quarantine remote control			•	*		
SpIDer Guard for workstations	Collect information about stations			•	•		
SpIDer Guard for servers Dr. Web for Microsoft Outlook	Period of collecting information about stations (min.)	180		•	•		
Dr.Web Firewall Preventive protection	Track location			•	•		
Network portmonitor Application Control	Period of coordinates transmission	15 min. 🗸		•	•		
6 Android 9 macOS	Track Application Control events			+	*		

If there is no connection to the Server, events are collected and sent when a connection appears.

4. Click on **Save**.

Allow the anti-virus server to collect information for the **Application Control events** section.

1. In Administration \rightarrow Dr.Web Server configuration, go to the Statistics tab.



2. Select one of the following options:

 Application Control statistics on processes activity — to receive and record information on the activity of all the processes: both those allowed to be launched and those whose launch is denied by the Application Control module.

When this option is enabled, all the applications on the stations, regardless of whether or not profiles were created to control the launch of applications, will be added to the catalog.

Important! Selecting this option can significantly increase the intensity with which resources are consumed as statistics are collected throughout the anti-virus network.

• **Application Control statistics on processes blocking** — to receive and record information on the activity of all the processes that have been blocked by Application Control.

When this option is enabled, applications will be added to the catalog only after profiles (whose setting are used to block the launch of applications) have been created and assigned to the anti-virus network stations.



Dr. Web Server configuration						
Dr.Web Server remote access					20	
 Dr. Web SNMP agent configuration 	Application Control statistics on processes activity			•	×	
Dr. Web Server Task Scheduler						
Web Server configuration User hooks	Application Control statistics on processes blocking				×	
Notifications	Multiple blockings by Application Control			•	*	
Repository						
Network scanner	Prohibition period on sending notifications	300			N	
Network installation	Period of counting blocked processes	3500	1.		4	
Application Control						
* Trusted applications	tvents number	100			×	
Application catalog						
Additional features	Number of the most common profiles	5	•		N	

3. Click on Save.

4. Restart the anti-virus server.

Administration 🕸			
* Administration	P Dr. Web Server		Versions fat
Dr.Web Server Encryption keys	Dr. Web Server Version	12.00.0 (27-08-2019 03:00:00)	Restart Dr.Web Se

After rebooting, the server will start recording all application launch-related statistics from all the stations that have Application Control installed on them. The Agent sends information about each application to the server only once, when an application first becomes active.

Information concerning the launch of applications installed on protected Windows stations and connected to the Dr.Web anti-virus server is recorded in the Application catalog.

Administration	*				Carlos Ca
Logs Configuration	Publisher	Product name V A	Version VA	Certificate subject V A	TO
- Notifications	Eugene Rositel & Far Group	Far Manager	30.650		
Installations	Eugene Rositial & Far Group	Far Manager	3.0.26.0		
Application Control Trusted applications	Eugene Rosifiel & Far Group	far Manager	3.0.27.0		
Application catalog	Eugene Rostiel & Far Group	Far Manager	3.0.55.0		
Additional features	Eugene Roshal & Far Group	Far Manager	3.0.35.0		
Database management	Eugene Rushel & Far Group	For Monoyer	3.0.27.0		
Dr.Web Server statistics	Eugene Roshel & Fer Group		3.0.310.0		
Lua console	Eugene Roshel & Fer Group	For Menager	3.0.29.0		
- Beckups	Eugene Roshel & Far Group	Far Manager	3.0.5498.0		
+ Ublibes	Eugene Rositel & Far Group	Far Manager	3 0 5454 0		

To view the application catalog, go to Administration \rightarrow Application Control \rightarrow Application catalog.

The catalog can be used to create Application Control module deny and allow rules. The catalog simplifies the process of creating rules because all application information is auto-filled using data about the selected known application.

1.2. Creating an Application Control module Profile

Profiles are used to specify the Application Control module settings that will dictate what applications will be launched or blocked on stations. Profiles define how the Application Control module operates. In this regard, the first step in configuring the **Application Control** module is to create a needed profile — configure what the Application Control module does for the stations, groups of stations, and individual users to which they can be assigned.

All profiles are placed in the pre-defined group **Profiles** in the anti-virus network view.



Anti-virus Network 🕸			
▼ Selected objects	🗶 - 🕂 - 🥔 - 🚇 - 🖯 🖉 - 🖯	The Profiles group properties	
🔯 Profiles	✓X協動和業務局部務會局目後 18	General	
 General 	Bahari visus Nicheade 1 ∰ Configures 1 ∰ Creytor 1 ∰ graup one 1 ∰ Coperating system	Identifier* Name* Parent group	MEDIANNA, JUNANIA AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN
	10월 Pelucea 410 Ridellina 10월 Terra main group 10월 Satura 10월 Terraport	Description	Children anti-work application profiles
	b []] Ungrouped	Profiles information	
		Total profiles	2
		Active profiles	1
		Disabled profiles	1
		Profiles in test mode	1
		Configuration	
		Pre Non editable group	

To create a profile

- 1. Select **Anti-virus Network** in the Control Center's main menu.
- 2. In the newly appeared window, on the toolbar, select **Add network object** \rightarrow **Create profile**.

Anti-virus Network 😭	
▼ Selected objects	* • + • @ • @ • Q • % •
🗀 Everyone	X S 1 1 1 X K Create station B 1 1 K K
General Statistics Configuration Permissions Task Scheduler Update restrictions Installing components	Anti-virus Network Create group Configured Create a neighbor Everyone Create policy Operating system Create Proxy Server Profiles Create profile For main group Create profile

3. On the newly appeared panel, enter the **Profile name**.

Anti-virus Network			
* Selected objects	🚖 - 🕂 - 🥔 - 🍙 - 🌒 - Q, - 🖷 - 🖻	New profile	Seve
Carl Everyone	× 3 m m 平 点 単 2 9 条 単 5 2 R	Profile name*	
+ General	li Anti-virus Network) fill Configured		

In the future, the profile name can be changed in the **General** profile properties settings.

Anti virus Network 😭					
▼ Selected objects	🖈 l 🕂 🖊 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉 🖉	The ref profile properties			Save
🚔 ref	✓×流血血羊皮局益感素●筋目炎 (1)	General			
* General	Anti-visus Network	Profile name=	4		
	Dim Dreyone	Identifier 1	7030ec0 fbcb 11e9 5602 e474b6c9194f		
	P (iii) Operating system	Enable profile			
	All Profess	Switch profile to global test mode			
	> Tormain group > Tormain group	Functional analysis criteria*			
)合面 Diff State	Application launch		0 prohibitions 0 permission	• /

4. Click on Save.

Anti-virus Network 😭			
▼ Selected objects	* I• + • # I• @ I• @ • Q I• % • B	Operation status / error message	
🙆 Everyone	/ X 型 助 助 苯 成 單 型 整 数 单 型 型 段	The sets works a second do second of	
General	Manti-virus Network	The ready of the succession y created.	

5. The new profile will be created and placed in the **Profiles** group.

1.3. Defining the list of trusted applications

Trusted applications — lists of applications that are always allowed to be launched on stations running the Application Control component. The user can select allowed lists of applications in the settings of the profile in the Allow mode settings.

To manage trusted applications on Servers that collect information, go to Administration \rightarrow Application Control \rightarrow Trusted applications.



The table in this section contains a list of all the relevant groups of trusted applications (whitelists) — applications that have been collected according to a specified criteria from a selected station or a group of stations.

Administration > Trusted applications $\dot{\gamma}$	ministration > Trusted applications \hat{Y}									
 Administration Licenses 	-1	00							tin fin fin in state	sh
 Logs Configuration 	0	Group name Y 🔨	Group description Y A	Creation start Y A	Last update Y A	Creation error Y A	Requested Y A	Completed Y A	Information collecting conditions Y 🔿 🍸	۰
NetFications Repository Installations Applications Applications Applications Applications Applications Additional Features Ostabase management Or.Web Sarver statistics SQL console Lus console Gackups	8	Офисныя		30-08-2019 15-11-36	-	no agent records for DB Stafe440- CDJ-1188-3035-148//ctcr48fe	1 station	O stations	Search scope • Runing processes, loaded modules, and drives • Triss from starbup Type of hashes to add • Prile hash if no certificate hash • Cetificate hash • Cetificate hash • Approximations • Approximations • Mathematications, modules, drives	
· Utilities									Search scope • Running processes, loaded modules, and drivers	

To create a new group of trusted applications

- 1. In the Trusted applications section, click on the toolbar button **(Creation of trusted appli-** cations group).
- 2. In the newly appeared window, specify a **Group name** (the name of the group of trusted applications you are creating) and a **Description** (an optional description for the created group).

+ 28									🔛 🖄 🔛 Refresh
Group name 🔨 🔨	Group de	escription V ^	Creation start V ^	Last update VA	Creation error V ^		Requested ~ ^	Completed VA	Information collecting conditions Y 🔨 🗘
		Creation of t	rusted applications gro	oup		×			Search scope • Running processes, loaded modules, and drivers • Search on all drives
		Page: 1/3	3 General			Next >			 Files from startup Type of hashes to add
Офисные		Group name*					1 station	0 stations	 File hash if no certificate hash Certificate hash

3. Click on **Next** and set the rules for adding applications to the list of trusted applications by selecting the options according to which the applications on the stations will be added to the newly created group of trusted applications.



In the **Search by specified paths** field, you can specify ways to search for applications. Use ";" as a separator.

4. Click on **Next**, and in the network tree, select the stations and groups of stations on which application information will be collected for inclusion in the trusted lists. To select multiple groups and stations, use the CTRL and SHIFT keys.



	neu appications group	
Page: 3/3	Stations selection	< Back Save
	t consider nested aroups	
	Directory	
D C Active	- Children y	
Active D Every	ane	

5. Click on **Save** to begin collecting application information on the stations according to the settings you specified. This process can take a long time.

Status and updating information for a group of trusted application groups can be viewed both in the main table of the **Trusted applications** section and in the additional group information that is available by clicking on the line corresponding to the group in the main table of the **Trusted applications** section.

Trusted applications group						×				
Group name	Офисные									
Creation start	30-08-201	30-08-2019 15:11:36								
Last update	_	-								
Information collecting condition	s Search s	Search scope:								
	• Running	 Running processes, loaded modules, and drivers 								
	 Files fr 	Files from startup								
 Search on all drives 										
Type of hashes to add:										
Certificate hash										
	 File has 	sh if no certificate hash								
	File cate	gories;								
	 Applica 	tions, modules, drivers								
	 Scripts 									
	• MSI pa	ckages								
						Û				
Station ID V ^ Station	name V ^	Station address \checkmark ^	Last update 🗸 ^	State V ^	Completion V ^	τ 0				
2ca941e0- WIN10_ ecas-11e9-7905- f0f7da268169	RUS	ssi://127.0.0.1:56824	-	Incompatible Agent version	0.0 %					
1				Page: 1	Showing 1 - 1 of	1 10 🗸				

To update a group of trusted applications

- 1. In the **Trusted applications** section, in the table, tick the boxes next to the groups that you want to update.
- 2. On the toolbar, click on **(Restart creation of trusted applications group**). To delete a group of trusted applications
- 1. In the **Trusted applications** section, in the table, tick the boxes next to the groups that you want to delete.
- 2. On the toolbar, click on **Collecte trusted applications group**).
- 3. If the group is not assigned to the Application Control profiles, the applications in this group will be deleted from the list of applications allowed to be launched on stations, and no more applications will be added to the list of applications that are to be trusted according to this group's criteria. When you delete groups of trusted applications, a new revision is created in the repository for the product **Trusted applications** and distributed to neighbouring Servers. This may disrupt the Application Control profile's operation for which this group is assigned on neighbouring Servers.

1.4. Setting an operation mode for the Application Control module Profile

- 1. In the Control Center's main menu, select **Anti-virus Network**.
- 2. Click on the profile name in the anti-virus network's hierarchical list (on the right side of the Control Center's window, a profile properties panel will open automatically), or click on the



profile icon in the anti-virus network tree, or select the profile and then select **Properties** in the control menu (a window showing the profile of the properties will open).

Anti virus Network 🕾											
▼ Selected objects	* - + -	🦸 I. 💼	1.		Q -	a - 🗄	The For main group profile properties				Save
🚊 For main group	✓ X ½ III II ¥	2月12日6691	50 R			49	General				
 General 	Anti-virus Network						Profile name*	For main group			
	Everyone						Identher	aff1d200-cd65-11e9-5537-760017700fee	6		
	0 (iii) Operating system						Enable profile				
	ALD Profiles						Switch profile to global test mode				
	D The ment group						Functional analysis criteria*				
	in the second se						Application launch		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
	0 (ill Status 0 (ill Transport						Mobiles load and execution		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
	0 🛗 Lingrouped						Laurch of script interpreters		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
							Orivers loading		0 prohibitions	0 permissions	1
							MSL packages installation		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
							Biecutable files integrity		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
							Allow mode				
							Dicabled				
							Allow rules		1 rule		
							Trusted applications		o groups		
							Deny mode Enabled				
							Deny rules		1 rule		
▼ Selected objects	 The For main group profile	properties									Seve
🚔 For main group	General Allow mode Deny	mode									
+ General	Profile name*	For main group									
	Identifier	afffd200-cd65-11e9-5537-	780617706/ee								
	Tratie profile										
	Switch profile to glob	tel test mode									
	Functional analysis criteria*										
	Application launch	01	millions	2 permissions	1						
	Modules load and execution		prohibitions	2 permissions	1						
	Lourch of script interprets		prohibilions	2 permissions	1						
	Drivers leading	0,	anhibitions	0 permissions	1						
	MSI peckages installation	0.	anitátina	2 permissions	1						
	Brecutable files integrity	0,	antiditure	2 permissions	1						
	· Allow mode										
	Allow rules	11	ule								
	Trusted applications	0,	groups								
	Deny mode Enabled										
	Deny rules	1,	ule								

- 3. In the **Profile name** field, you can change the profile name.
- 4. Select **Enable profile** to start using it. If you select **Switch profile to global test mode**, all the profile settings will not be applied to the stations, but activity will be recorded as if the settings were enabled.

These are the following profile modes:

- **Disabled** a profile is not active; the profile settings are not applied.
- Active a profile is active; the settings are applied to the objects to which this profile is distributed.
- **Test** (global) a profile is active, but it works in the global test mode.
- **Test** (*for rules*) a profile is active, but only functional analysis settings are distributed to the objects.

Allow and deny rules work in test mode: their setting are not distributed to objects, but the operation result is recorded in the activity log (the **Application Control events** statistics section). The test mode for rules is enabled and disabled in the settings section containing the allow and deny rules.

5. In the **Functional analysis criteria** section, select the criteria that you want to use and specify the set of predefined rules that are to be used to allow or deny the launch of applications.



If you are configuring a profile for the first time, when enabling each criteria, the allow categories will automatically be enabled in the advanced settings. In the future, if necessary, you can disable these allow categories in the advanced settings.

To specify advanced settings for the selected criteria, click on **Edit** next to the appropriate criteria. You will see a window with a list of settings.



The functional analysis settings can be either denying or allowing. Tick the boxes for those settings that should be applied.

If you enable the use of one of the criteria but do not specify its advanced settings, launch control will be carried out for all the objects according to this criteria, in accordance with the settings that allow or deny. For example:

- If the Run script interpreters criteria is specified, but its advanced settings are not specified, you will be able to monitor the launch of all script interpreters in accordance with the settings specified for the allow or deny mode.
- If the Run script interpreters criteria and its advanced setting Prevent running of scripts from removable media is specified, only the launch of scripts from removable media will be blocked.

Anti virus Network > For main group >	Proper	ties 🕸				
♥ Selected objects		The For main group pr	ofile properti	Launch of script interpreters	ж	Save
A For main group		General Allow mode	Deny mode		Save	
➤ General		Profile name*	For my	Prohibitions Permissions		
		Identifier	arrruzo	Revent running of CHQ84T scripts		
		Greble profile		Prevent running of MTA scripts		
		Switch profile to	o globel text n	Prevent running of VBSoript/JavaSoript		
		Functional analysis crib	eria+	Prevent running of PowerShell scripts		
		Application learch		Reevent running of RBG scripts		
		Mudules load and eve	sution	Frevent running of scripts from NTFS (ADS) alternate threads		
		Launch of script inter	rpreters	Prevent running of scripts from network and shares		
		Drivers loading		Ifrevent running of scripts from removable media		
			s.	Revent running of scripts from temporary folders		

Important! If you specify advanced settings but do not enable the criteria itself, neither the advanced settings nor the criteria will be executed.

To save advanced settings, click on **Save** in the window with the list of advanced settings.

Important! If you do not enable a single criterion in the **Functional analysis criteria** section, the profile will be disabled.

nti-virus Network > For main group > Properties 🚖									
▼ Selected abjects #	The Formalingroup profile properties								
🗎 For main group	Investig contribution of parameters. The settings will not be served. Pestures of setting up the Application Control profiles are described in the Administration Manual.								
* General									



Important! If advanced settings are not specified for one of the criteria in the **Functional analysis criteria** section, and the allow and deny modes are disabled, the profile will be disabled.

- 6. To apply the settings specified in the **General** section, click on **Save** in the profile settings.
- 7. In the **Allow mode** section, in the profile properties window, you can find a general summary of the mode settings: the number of created allow rules and the groups of trusted applications assigned to this profile.

The Allow mode assumes that on all the controlled stations, only applications on the list of **Trusted applications** and applications that comply with allow rules are allowed. All other applications are blocked.

To enable or disable this mode and to configure rules and trusted applications, go to the **Allow mode** section and then go to the relevant section.

nti virus Network > For main group > Prope	rties 🛱			
Selected objects	The For main group profile properties			Save
🚔 For main group	General Allow mode Deny mode			
General	Use allow mode			
	Allowrules Trusted applications			
			0n # +	
		A i		
	Name	Operation mode		

To use the allow mode

- 1. In the **Allow mode** tab, tick the box next to **Use allow mode**.
- 2. Specify the settings in the **Allow rules** and/or **Trusted applications** sections.
- To create a new allow rule
- a. In the **Allow rules** section, click on **M** (**Create a rule**) on the toolbar.
- b. In the **Adding rule** window, enter the **Rule name** and click on **Save**.

Anti virus Network > For main group > Prop	inties 🕅									
* Selected objects	The For main group profile properties	For main group profile properties								
🚍 For main group	Ceneral Allow mode Deny mode									
» General	Use slow mode	Adding rule X								
	Allow makes Trusted applications	Save								
	0.04	Rule name *								
	Rame Operation mode									

c. Select the rule from the rules list and specify its settings in the newly appeared property panel:

i. Select Enable rule to start using this rule.

Anti-virus Network > For main	n group > Properti	es ŵr				
* Selected objects	#	The For main group profile property	ies:			Save
🚔 For main group		General Allow mode Deny mode				
► General		Use allow mode				
		Allow rukes Trusted applications				
				40 t t +	Rule name	
		Name	Operation mode		правкло 1	
		превило 1	Disabled		Trable rule	
					Switch rule to test mode	
					Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria-	
					Match the executatie file tash (\$10-256)	
					Match the following options:	
					Application certificate fristil (SH2-1)	
					Executable file metadata	
					File name	
					File size (bytes)	
					File version	
					Hie description	
					Original file name	
					Product name	
					Product version	
					D.Mahar	

ii. If you want to check how a rule works without applying it to the stations, tick the box next to **Switch rule to test mode**.



- iii. In the **Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria** section, select the options according to which applications will be allowed to launch on the stations. You can also create allow rules from the Control Center's **Application Control events** and **Application catalog** sections based on data received from the stations.
- d. Click on **Save**.

To duplicate an allow rule

- a. In the **Allow rules** section, in the rules table, select the rule you want to duplicate for this profile.
- b. On the toolbar, click on 🖄 (**Duplicate rule**).
- c. A new rule will appear in the rules table; its settings will be copied in full from the rule selected in step 1. The figure **1** will be added to the name of the rule.

To remove an allow rule, in the rules table, select the rule that you want to delete from the profile, and on the toolbar, click on **Celete rule**).

To edit a trusted application for a selected profile, go to the **Trusted applications** tab. The tab's table contains a list of all the groups of trusted applications (an application whitelist) that are assigned to that profile. The application whitelist is a list of applications collected from a selected station or a group of stations according to specified criteria.

These applications are allowed to run on the anti-virus network stations for which this profile (if working in the allow mode) has been assigned.

If your Server is receiving trusted applications via an inter-server connection, the group table can contain entries marked with **Trusted applications group is absent in the Server repository**. These entries are relevant for groups of applications that were added from the previous revision of the product **Trusted applications**, after which a new revision, in which this group is not included, was received. To prevent the disruption of the profile's operation, it is recommended that you remove these groups from its settings.

To add a group of trusted applications to a profile

- a. On the toolbar, in the **Trusted applications** section, click on **(Adding trusted applications** group to a profile).
- b. A window containing the list of all the available groups of trusted applications will open.

Anti-virus Network > For main group > Prop	erties 🛱											
* Selected objects	The For main group pr	ofile properties							Sare			
🗎 For main group	General Allow moder	Amode Deny mode										
* General	Use allow mode											
	Allow rules Trusteer	pplications										
					8.4							
	Group ID YA	Adding trusted applications group	Adding brusted applications group 🗙						T O			
						Save						
		Group ID Y Y	Group name Y A	Group description Y A	Last update Y A	τo						
		9ee579c0-1439-11e9-7470-3c027b0ec6e5	1		22-10-2019 17:39.41							
		1		Page: 1	Showing 1 - 1 of	1 10 🗸						

- c. When configuring the allow mode, groups of trusted applications are selected from the list of groups available in the repository for the product **Trusted applications**.
- d. Tick the boxes next to the groups of applications that you want to add to the profile.
- e. Click on **Save**.

To remove a group of trusted applications from a profile

- a. In the **Trusted applications** section, tick the boxes next to the groups that you want to remove from the profile.
- b. On the toolbar, click on **Celete trusted applications group**).
- c. The applications of this group will be deleted from the list of those allowed to run on the stations for which this profile was assigned.



When you delete applications from a profile, the group of trusted applications itself is not removed. The group is available in the repository and can be added to this profile and to other profiles.

To use trusted applications, do one of the following:

- a. If trusted applications are going to be collected on your Server, activate the collection of trusted applications in the Control Center section **Administration** → **Application Control** → **Trusted Applications**.
- b. If trusted applications are sent to your Server via an inter-server connection from a neighbouring Server, specify the appropriate settings in the repositories of the Servers that send and receive the product **Trusted applications**.
- 3. Click on Save.

Important! If neither allow rules nor trusted applications are specified, the allow mode will be disabled.

8. In the **Deny mode** section, in the profile properties window, you can find a general summary of the mode settings: the number of deny rules created.

The **Deny mode** assumes that on all the controlled stations, only applications that comply with deny rules are denied. All other applications are allowed.

To enable or disable this mode and to configure rules and trusted applications, go to the **Deny mode** section and then go to the relevant section.

1. In the **Deny mode** tab, tick the box next to **Use deny mode**.

- 2. To create a deny rule
 - a. Click on 屠 (**Create rule**).
 - b. In **Adding rule**, enter the **Rule name**.

Anti-virus Network > For main group > Prope	irties 🕸					
* Selected objects	The For main group profile prop	verties				
🚔 For main group	General Allow mode Dany mot	de		Adding rule	*	
* General	Use deny mode			See		
			(2) 0 +	Rule name *		
	Name	Operation mode				
	ರಲ್	Active				

c. Click on **Save**.

3. Select the rule from the rules list, and specify its settings in the newly appeared property panel.

Anti-virus Network > For main	a group > Properties 🕸			
* Selected objects	JP The For main group profile proper	ties		5
🚔 For main group	General Allow mode Donymode	1		
+ General	Use deny mode			
			(2) = + Subscreen	
	Name	Operation mode	old'ar	
	cicl'ar	Disabled	Enable rule	
			Switch rule to test made	
			Prohibit the launch of applications on the following criteria:	
			O Match the executable file hash (SHA-256)	
			Metch the following options:	
			Application certificate hash (\$HA-1)	
			Everytable file metadata	
			Pile name	
			File size (DyCes)	
			File version	
			= U 3.0.5454.0	
			/lie description	
			Original file name	
			Product name	
			Product version	
			= J.05454.0	

- a. Select **Enable rule** to start using this rule.
- b. If you want to check how a rule works without applying it to stations, tick the box next to **Switch rule to test mode**. Otherwise, the rule will work in active mode, blocking applications on the stations according to the specified rules settings.



c. In the **Prohibit the launch of applications on the following criteria** section, select the options according to which the launch of applications will be denied on stations.

You can also create deny rules from the Control Center's Application Control events and Application catalog sections based on the data received from the stations.

- d. Click on **Save**.
- 4. Click on Save.

To duplicate a deny rule

- 1. Select the rule you want to duplicate for this profile.
- 2. On the toolbar, click on 🖄 (**Duplicate rule**).
- 3. A new rule will appear in the rules table; its settings will be copied in full from the rule selected in step 1. The figure 1 will be added to the name of the rule.

To remove a deny rule, select the rule that you want to delete from the profile, and on the toolbar, click on 🗯 (**Delete rule**).

Important! If you do not specify deny rules, the profile will be disabled.

Important! Allow and deny modes can be enabled or disabled together or separately. Functional analysis should always be enabled. If all the rules of functional analysis are disabled, application launches are not controlled.

1.5. Configuring the Application Control module Profile

To control the launch of applications on stations, at least one active profile must be assigned to a station or to the user of that station.

Since all profiles are placed in the pre-defined group Profiles, which is accessible in the anti-virus network view, the objects to which a specified profile is assigned are placed in the anti-virus network tree as elements of this profile.

1.5.1. Creating a rule based on activity log data

- 1. In the section **Statistics** → **Application Control** events, click on the line with the event about an attempt to run the application for which you want to create a rule that will monitor its launch.
- 2. In the newly appeared window containing information about the selected event, click on **Create rule**.

Application control events: 28-1	10-2019 15:07:56	×
	Create rule	^
Identifier	2ca841e0-ecas-11e8-7906-f0f7ds268169	
Station	WIN10_RUS	
Station address	ssl://127.0.0.1:56824	
Security identifier	S-1-5-21-838027991-3387140579-3678695824	
User	DRWEB\user	
Event type	MSI package launch	
Applied action	Unknawn	
Functional analysis criterion	Unknawn	
Functional analysis mask	-	
Profile ID	-	
Profile name		
Rule ID		
Rule name		
Operation mode	Active	
Process file path	C:\temp2\Far30b5498.x64.20191028.msi	
Process	-	
Bulletin with process hash		
Script file path	-	
Script	-	
Bulletin with script hash		
Event occurrence	28-10-2019 15:07:56	
Event notification	28-10-2019 15:07:56	~



- 3. In the subsequent window, specify:
 - a. In the **Profile name** drop-down list, select the Application Control profile in which the rule will be created.

Application control events: 28-10-2019 15:07:56	×
Save Cano	ei 🔥
Profile name	
ref 🗸	
Rule name	
Rule type	
Allow	
Орепу	
Operation mode	
Active	
• Test	
	- 1
Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria:	
Match the executable file hash (SHA-256)	
Match the following options:	
Application certificate hash (SHA-1)	
✓ Executable file metadata	
E file name	
File size (bytes)	

- b. In the **Rule name** field, enter the name for the new rule.
- c. In the **Rule type** section, select the type of rule to be created: allow or deny.
- d. For the **Operation mode** option, select the mode in which the created rule will work.
- In the **Test** mode, applications will not be blocked on stations, but activity will be recorded with the settings enabled. The results of potential application blocking based on the rule you created will be displayed in the **Application Control events** section.
- e. In the **Prohibit the launch of applications on the following criteria / Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria** section, fields are auto-filled in accordance with the application data used to create the rule. You can edit it, if necessary.
- 4. Click on **Save**. The rule will be created in the specified Application Control Profile.
- 1.5.2. Creating a rule based on Application catalog data
- 1. In the **Application catalog** section, select the line about the application for which you want to create a rule that will control its launch.
- 2. When you click on a line in the table, a window showing information about the selected application will appear.

► Administration	*					Carla Carla Refresh
Licenses		Application catalogi		×		
 Configuration 	Publisher			Create rule	Certificate subject Y A	Y O
Notifications Dependence	Michael Lukashuv			_		
 Installations 	Eugene Rashel & Fer G	Original file name	arcite.dl	_		
T Application Control	Eugene Rochel & Far G	Product name				
Annication catalon	Eugene Roshel & Far G	File description	ArcLite for Far Manager 3 x64			
* Additional features	Eugene Rostal & Par G	File version	3.0.310.0			
Database management	Eugene Roshal & Par G	SHA-256 hash	4e7e99ce6d9612642eebc473f749bfcf6bc378e9c0bd4127282c170b3d3e70e6			
Dr.Web Server statistics	Eurone Rushel & Fer G	Product version	3.0.5498.0			
SQL console	Furner Danibal & Far C	Publisher	Eugene Rushal & Far Group			
* Lue console	European Roschal S. Far G	File size (Uyles)	1040528			
· Beckups	Research Restar & Far C	Certificate subject		_		
	tupes state a ra d	Application certificate hash (SHA-1)				
	cugene kosnal ol rar u	Certificate serial number				
	Eugene Rushel & Fer G	Certificate issuer		_		
	Gugene Rushel & Per G	Certificate timestamp				
	Eugene Reshel & Fer G	Certificate start date				
	Eugene Roshel & Far G	Certificate end date				

3. Click on **Create rule**.



- 4. The window for creating a new rule will open. Configure the following settings:
 - a. In the **Profile name** drop-down list, select the Application Control profile where the rule is to be created.

Application control events: 28-10-2019 15:07:56		×
	Save Cancel	^
Profile name		
ref 🗸		
Rule name		
Rule type		
Allow		
O Deny		
Operation mode		
O Active		
() Test		
Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria:		
Match the executable file hash (SHA-256)		
Match the following options:		
Application certificate hash (SHA-1)		
Evecutable file metadata		
File name		
File size (bytes)		

- b. In the Rule name field, specify the name for the new rule.
- c. For the **Rule type** option, select the type of rule you are creating: allow or deny.
- d. For the Operation mode option, select the mode for the created rule (this corresponds to the **Switch rule to test mode** checkbox when you are creating a rule from a profile). If you want to check how a rule works without applying it to stations, select the **Test** mode.
- e. In the **Prohibit the launch of applications on the following criteria / Allow the launch of applications on the following criteria** section (depending on the rule type selected in step d), fields will be auto-filled in accordance with the application for which the rule is being created. You can edit the configuration values if necessary.
- 5. Click on **Save**. The rule will be created in the specified Application Control profile.

1.6. Assigning a Profile to protected objects

- 1. Select **Anti-virus Network** in the Control Center's main menu.
- 2. In the newly appeared window, select from the hierarchical list the profile that you want to assign.
- 3. On the toolbar, click on **Export Data** \rightarrow **Assign profile**.

Anti-virus Network 🏫								
* Selected objects	* • + • #	. al. a.	Q . 🦷 - 🗄	The For main group profile properties			16	lave
🗎 For main group	>X2000,53423	Save data to CSV file	98	General				
 General 	Configured Configured Configured Configured Configured Configured Configured Configured Configure Configu	Seve data to HTML File Seve data to HTML File Seve data to XML File Seve data to RDF File Upport configuration Import conf		Protile name* Identifier tracie profile Smitch profile to glubal test mode Functional analysis criteria*	for main group aff15200-s855-15af-5537-786657766/ee			
	b to refs	🕅 Propagate configuration		4pplication launch		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
) (in Status) (in Transport	Assign policy		Modules load and execution		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	1
	Pills Ungrouped	📴 Assign profile		Launch of script interpreters		0 prohibitions	2 permissions	/

4. In the newly appeared window, select the object to which the settings are to be distributed. In the **Active Directory** tab, you can find lists (similar to the list in the anti-virus network tree) that are updated according to a **Synchronize with Active Directory** task from the Server



schedule. Lists contain identical objects but differ in terms of the type of objects to which the profile will be assigned:

- In the Active Directory stations list, you can select a group of stations or individual stations registered in the Active Directory domain.
- In the Active Directory users list, you can choose user groups and individual users who are registered in the Active Directory domain.

The same objects should not be chosen in different lists.

In the **Anti-virus Network** tab, you can select a group of stations (the settings will be applied to all the user accounts of all the stations contained in the group data) or individual stations within groups (the settings will be applied to all the user accounts of the selected stations):



In the Local users tab, you can select the following objects:

- Stations. In this case, the settings will be applied to all the user accounts of the selected stations.
- Individual users on stations. In this case, settings will only be applied to the selected user accounts on these stations.

Anti-virus Network 🛱			
▼ Selected objects #	* • + • # • 📾 • @ • Q • 🤮	Assigning the profile to objects	Save
A For main group	✓×资料和学说得监督收考照回政	Active Directory Anti-virus Network Local Users	
 General 	B. Anthrivinus Nectoros. 101. Configurati 102. Configurati 103. Configuration 103. C	Local users Compute	

The settings of the Application Control profiles can be assigned not only to stations and groups of stations, but also to individual users and groups of users. In this respect:

- 1. If there are custom settings, they have the highest priority.
- 2. If there are no custom settings, priority is given to the user group settings.
- 3. If no settings are specified for users and the user group, the inheritance is carried out according to the priority of settings that have been applied to stations.
- 5. Click on **Save**. All the selected objects will be added to the list covered by the configured profile and displayed in the tree as nested objects of the configured profile.

To cancel assigning profile settings to an object

- 1. Select **Anti-virus Network** in the Control Center's main menu.
- 2. In the newly appeared window, in the hierarchical list, expand the list of objects attached to the profile, and select the object for which you want to cancel the profile assignment.



3. On the toolbar, click on **General** \rightarrow **Unassign the profile to objects**.

Anti-virus Network 🛱					
▼ Selected objects	* • 🔺 • 🖉 • @	L - @ - Q - @ - B	The Hosen station properties		Save
🛃 Hósan	/ 🗙 🖫 / Eat	5 🖸 😘 18	General		
Conteral Configuration Permitsations Tretailing components	Action Action		Station identifier = Name = Creation date Password Confirm Password MAC address Date of last connection Network address Description Installation file Configuration file	1000.00-wa5-100-4007-00003.0e34 Hease 20 51 20:5 20:5 21:7-40	

2. Viewing activity statistics on protected stations

- 1. In the hierarchical list, select a station or a group.
- 2. In the **Statistics** section's control menu, select **Application Control events**.
- 3. A window will appear containing the list of applications that were denied or allowed on the selected stations.

Statistics for the last 24 hours are displayed by default. To display data for a certain period, specify a date range with respect to the present day from the drop-down list.



To specify an arbitrary date range, enter the desired dates or click the calendar icon next to the date fields.



To display data, click on **Refresh**.

The contents of the displayed information is also configurable. To select what table fields you want displayed, click on **T**.



1-10-2019 23:59:59 Refresh
vent occurrence Y 🔹 🕈
Rows display settings
🖬 Trim long lines
🐼 Word wrap
Columns to display
M Identifier
M Station
Station address
Security identifier
User User
Event type
Applied action
Functional analysis crit
Functional analysis mask
Profile ID
M Profile name
Rule ID
🐼 Rule name
Geration mode
Process file path
Process
Bulletin with process h
Script file path
🐼 Script
Bulletin with script hash
Event occurrence

If you want to save the statistics table for printing or future processing, click on one of these buttons (Save as a CSV file, Save as an HTML file, Save as an XML file, Save as a PDF file).





3rd street Yamskogo polya 2-12A, Moscow, Russia, 125040 Tel.: +7 (495) 789–45–87 Fax: +7 (495) 789–45–97

https://www.drweb.com https://free.drweb.com https://ru.av-desk.com https://curenet.drweb.com